
 

PC Minutes 8-29-13 

 

 

 

City of Washington Terrace 1 
                                                2 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 3 

Minutes of a Regular Planning Commission Meeting held on  4 
Thursday, August 29, 2013 5 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 6 
County of Weber, State of Utah          7 

_____________________________________________________________________ 8 
 9 

PLANNING COMMISSION AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT  10 
Chairman Wallace Reynolds  11 
Commissioner Scott Barker 12 
Commissioner Larry Weir 13 
Commissioner Dan Johnson 14 
Commissioner T.R. Morgan 15 
Commissioner Scott Larsen 16 
Commissioner Charles Allen 17 
Chief Building Inspector Jeff Monroe 18 
City Recorder Amy Rodriguez 19 
 20 
Others Present  21 
None 22 
 23 

1. ROLL CALL                                                                       6:00 p.m. 24 
 25 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 26 
 27 

3. WELCOME  28 
 29 

4. RECURRING BUSINESS 30 
        4.1      MOTION: APPROVAL OF AGENDA 31 

 Motion by Commissioner Barker 32 
 Seconded by Commissioner Morgan 33 

 to approve the agenda 34 
 Approved unanimously (7-0) 35 

  36 
        4.2      MOTION: APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR JUNE 27, 2013 37 
Commissioner Weir made several suggestions that will be put into the minutes on final approval. 38 

 Motion by Commissioner Weir 39 
 Seconded by Commissioner Barker 40 

 to approve the minutes for June 27, 2013 41 
 Approved unanimously (7-0) 42 

 43 
  44 

5.    NEW BUSINESS               45 
            46 
           5.1   MOTION: APPROVAL OF LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT AT 445 WEST 47 



 

PC Minutes 8-29-13 

 

 

 

                   5100 SOUTH AND 430 WEST 5200 SOUTH 48 
Monroe explained that the properties are owned by a father and daughter (Robert and Linda 49 
Hensley). The father is petitioning for a lot line adjustment to give a portion of his property to his 50 
daughter so that her parcel is combined to the lower half of his property. The Commission 51 
reviewed the plats. 52 
Linda Hensley’s property will be extended to almost a half-acre. Monroe stated that the access or 53 
driveway will not be changed. A boundary change is needed for Robert Hensley to give some of 54 
his property to his daughter. Monroe explained that they are moving the property line to separate 55 
the properties. 56 

 57 
Motion by Commissioner Morgan 58 

Seconded by Commissioner Johnson 59 
To approve the lot line adjustment at 60 

 445 West 5100 South and 430 West 5200 South 61 
Approved unanimously (7-0) 62 

 63 
           5.2   DISCUSSION: LAND USE AMENDMENT TO DESIGNATE PROPERTY 64 
                   ALONG ADAMS AVE. AS RETAIL ONLY 65 
Monroe stated that a C-2 zone allows for all types of businesses. He stated that elements that 66 
have to be addressed by a city involve bringing beneficial businesses into the city, describing 67 
beneficial as businesses that bring sales tax revenue or businesses that have less impact to the 68 
city infrastructure (utilities, fire, police). He stated that currently the hospital and healthcare 69 
practices that are very prevalent in the city create the dynamic for similar types of businesses to 70 
come into the city.  Monroe mentioned that there has been interest in another assisted living 71 
center to be developed along Adams Avenue. Monroe stated that these types of businesses cost 72 
the city more money to service than other types of businesses because they put heavier impact on 73 
water, sewer, fire, and police.  74 
Chairman Reynolds inquired what percentage of C-2 zones is occupied by retail. Monroe stated 75 
that there is not much retail in the C-2 zone along Adams Avenue. Monroe noted that there is 76 
open space south of the hospital that has high potential, stating that as other areas build out, he 77 
sees this area as a prime place for businesses to locate.  78 
Commissioner Larsen stated that he feels that the toll road will be the biggest preventer of retail 79 
business. 80 
Chairman Reynolds stated that office space along the area is at overkill and the city benefits little 81 
from those types of businesses. He stated that retail should be the prime emphasis along that 82 
area, noting that the detractor is the toll road. Monroe stated that the key thing to note is that the 83 
city cannot stop assisted living centers or other types of office businesses from coming into the 84 
C-2 zone because they currently are allowed. Monroe stated that he will give the list of permitted 85 
businesses under the C-2 zone to the Commission to review to determine if they would like to 86 
modify the zone or create a new zone. 87 
Chairman Reynolds stated that he feels that before the city looks at changing zones to maximize 88 
higher retail potential, the city needs data as to what specific areas will  work best for retail 89 
properties.   90 
Monroe stated that he would like to receive direction from the Commission as to whether they 91 
feel that reviewing the zoning for possible modifications is something they would like to do or 92 
remain status quo.  Chairman Reynolds stated that the Commission needs to look at what has the 93 
best benefit to the city before modifying or changing the areas, stating that there is no benefit to 94 



 

PC Minutes 8-29-13 

 

 

 

the city if it remains status quo. Chairman Reynolds stated that it would be to our advantage 95 
now to look at what we can do (consideration wise) as to what can be changed in that area for 96 
maximize benefit to the city. He stated that the Commission should look at what is currently in 97 
the area and if there are any restrictions. He stated that the Commission should make some 98 
changes and bring the proposal to City Council. Monroe stated that a long term goal of the 99 
Council is to have a retail area that is beneficial to the community. Chairman Reynolds stated 100 
that the Commission always thought that the areas would be commercial space in regards to land 101 
use. He also noted that there needs to be consideration of homes that are adjacent to the 102 
properties within specific areas.  He stated that the Commission also needs to consider egress as 103 
a big factor. 104 
Chairman Reynolds asked that Monroe supply various options for various areas in the city while 105 
detailing what space is still available and the best scenarios for the community. He would like 106 
the proposals emailed and given to the Commission with adequate time to review. 107 
Commissioner Allen suggested that the city could hire a professional marketing firm to help with 108 
getting businesses into the city. Monroe noted that the city had Weber State students do analysis 109 
with the city. 110 
Commissioner Barker wanted an update on the toll road discussions. Monroe stated that 111 
discussions are in the beginning stages, with traffic flow and other studies being conducted 112 
analyses of the cost of the road. Monroe stated that the city manager has been working on the toll 113 
road situation for the last two years, citing that the toll road on the main street is a hindrance to 114 
opening up retail businesses. 115 

 116 
 117 
                   118 
     6.  UPDATE COMMISSION ON CURRENT DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS AND  119 
          ZONING ISSUES 120 
Monroe stated that the Public Works department had to pull up the grass at one of the detention 121 
basins and compact the area.  122 
     123 
 124 

7. UPCOMING EVENTS    125 
         Sept. 2: City Office s closed for Labor Day 126 
         Sept. 3: City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 127 
         Sept. 17: City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 128 
         Sept. 26th: Planning Commission Meeting 6:00 p.m. 129 
 130 

8. MOTION: ADJOURN THE MEETING   131 
 132 

Motion by Commissioner Weir 133 
Seconded by Commissioner Barker 134 

To adjourn the meeting 135 
Approved unanimously (7-0) 136 

Time: 6:39 p.m. 137 
 138 

________________________________      ___________________________ 139 
Date Approved                                           City Recorder 140 


